Public Document Pack
Mark Saccoccio
Town Clerk
01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

22 October 2020
To: Members of the Older Persons Task & Finish Group (Councillors K Cursons,
M Freeman, R Goodchild, T Morris, S Owen and G Perham)
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information)

NOTICE OF MEETING
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Older Persons Task & Finish
Group to be held on Thursday, 29 October 2020 commencing at 10.00 am in the This
will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in
THIS MEETING MAY
accordance with The Local Authorities and Crime Panels
BE RECORDED *
(Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales)
Regulations 2020.
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetupjoin/19%3ameeting_NTRkOGY1MzAtMTQzMC00MTViLWI0ZGQtMWJjYTE1MjBmY2Y
4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2243be2b38-f73a-4576-be8853d30b9697ef%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%225c24f997-2ebc-40a3-9343b16681c77adf%22%7d

M Saccoccio
Town Clerk

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting.
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town
Clerk.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(i)

Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are
required to declare any interests which are not currently entered in the
Member’s Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the

This will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in accordance with The Local Authorities
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020

OLDER PERSONS TASK & FINISH GROUP

(ii)

3.

Thursday, 29 October 2020

Monitoring Officer of it.
Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item
on the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of
that item unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing)
and granted by the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order
No.s 3(f) and 3(g).

4.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)
(a)

(b)

5.

6.

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Older
Persons Task and Finish Group meeting held on 15 October 2020
(attached) in accordance with Standing Order 12.
To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous
meeting (if appropriate).

OLDER PEOPLE (Pages 5 - 18)
(a)

To receive and consider updates on work which furthers and informs the
Group’s areas of focus.

(b)

To receive update on Befriending Services in Leighton Buzzard and
Linslade (attached).

(c)

To receive a draft report in readiness for submission to the Cultural and
Economic Services Committee on 7 December 2020 (agenda is published
on 27 November 2020 (attached).

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting – 7 December 2020

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member,
officer or member of the public. No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into
exempt session. The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control.

Agenda Item 4
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
OLDER PERSONS TASK AND FINISH GROUP
THURSDAY 15 OCTOBER 2020 AT 1000 HOURS
Present:

Councillors

Also in attendance:

05/OP

S Owen (Chair)
R Goodchild
M Freeman
G Perham
T Morris
K Cursons
V Cannon, Head of Cultural & Economic
Services
S Jewell, Older Persons Project Co-ordinator
M Jahn, Committee Officer
Gina Croxford Community Action Beds
Sharon Rogers, Carers in Bedfordshire
Penny Carmen, Community Wellbeing
Champion (social prescriber)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies were received.

06/OP

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were received.

07/OP

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
There were no questions from members of the public.

08/OP

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
(a) The Committee received the minutes of the Older Persons Task and Finish
Group meeting held on 1 October 2020.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Older Persons Task and Finish
Group meeting held on 1 October 2020 be approved as a correct
record and would be signed at a later date, when safe to do so.
(b) Further updates would be covered by the agenda items to follow.

09/OP

OLDER PEOPLE
(a)
Three guest speakers were welcomed to the meeting and invited to
speak regarding their group involvement in community projects.
Gina Croxford, CAB, informed the Group that her organisation provided

Page 1

Page 1

Older Persons Task & Finish Group

1 October 2020

community projects such as Jazz up your Life, work clubs, Café Connect to try
and combat loneliness for older people. Many people did not have digital
access and during the present climate this caused isolation for them. The
ability to connect digitally as well as 1-to-1 would greatly enhance their lives.
Sharon Rogers, Carers in Bedfordshire, informed the Group that her
organisation provided support for unpaid carers living in Central Bedfordshire.
This was achieved by 1-to-1 support, telephone befrienders, walking groups,
carers cafes, peer support and they also provide grants of up to £300 which
carers can use to enhance their daily life.
Many were not digitally included as they did not have access to equipment or
knowledge of how to use it. Digital inclusion was an important issue to
alleviate loneliness, but it was important to ensure users were advised how to
do this safely.
It was felt, however, that telephone contact with a regular person was a great
way to keep all included if using digital equipment was too involved for the
user.
Penny Carmen, Community Wellbeing Champion, joined the meeting but was
unable to retain access so could not speak.
(b)
The Task and Finish Group received an update report setting out how
the project had progressed and what the next steps would be.
Key areas which were highlighted at the previous meeting included lack of
digital inclusion, a gap in the groups being accessed by men causing
loneliness, the need of a central hub to access information, connectivity
between older people and the influence of Covid-19 on delivery options and
plans.
Members agreed in the short-term technology support/workshops could be run
via telephone and a page added to the Town Council website listing activities
and services. In the medium-term technology workshops could be run face to
face via befrienders, in community centres or libraries. Also an on-line directory
of organisations could be set up and these organisations could have their own
password to update the information on a regular basis.
In the longer term a tablet loan scheme in partnership with libraries, local
companies and community organisations could be set up to allow more digital
inclusion for older people. A question was raised regarding how people who
were shielding would access the equipment and it was agreed that the Yellow
Book for Older People would still be needed. An updated version should be
looked into and then distributed to as many older people as possible. This
should include local villages if possible. Councillor Owen asked if there was a
need for more telephone befrienders and should this idea be included in the
plan. It was agreed there was a huge need for telephone befrienders especially
in the current climate.
It was suggested that local IT companies could offer technological support and

Page 2

Page 2

Older Persons Task & Finish Group

1 October 2020

a helpline when tablets are being used. It was suggested the Library could
deliver tablets as they do books to isolated people, or local groups like
Leighton Linslade Helpers could assist in deliveries.
The Group agreed the next steps should be
(a) Research telephone befriending services
(b) Distribution of an updated Yellow Book for Older People and research costs
around an online directory of ‘services/activities’
(c) Support to set up a website for Helping Hands to assist people in locating
the service
(d) In the medium to longer term – set up of digital inclusion helpline, training
and a tablet loan scheme
Councillor Freeman informed the Group that Inspiring Music were looking into a
project to address loneliness through music and contact details were shared to look
into this. Sarah J confirmed she had contacted the group and would continue to follow
up the work.
Gina Croxford and Sharon Rogers were thanked for attending the meeting.
10/OP DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Older Persons T & F Group 29 October 2020 at 10.000 am
Cultural & Economic Services Meeting – 7 December 2020 at 7.30 pm

The meeting closed at 1117 hours.
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 OCTOBER 2020.
Chair

29 October 2020

Page 3

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4

Agenda Item 5

Older People Task and Finish Group
Date:

29 October 2020

Purpose of the Report:

Information paper – update on
Older Peoples Project

Contact Officer:

Sarah Jewell, C&E Services
Support Officer

1.

Information paper setting out the next steps for progressing this
project.

2.

Next steps identified at last meeting (15 October 2020)
a) Research telephone befriending services
b) Distribution of an updated ‘Yellow Book for Older People’ and research
costs around an online directory of ‘services/activities’
c) Support the set up of a website for Leighton Linslade Helping Hands
d) Digital inclusion – in the medium to longer term, set up of a technology
helpline, training and a possible tablet loan scheme.

3.

Update on identified next steps
a) Befriending services
Officer created a table (appendix 1) to show what organisations
currently operate either a befriending service or who currently offer
‘welfare checks’ via the phone. Capacity exists for new clients.
b) Older people booklet
The last ‘Information for Older People’ booklet was published in 2018.
Officer not managed to speak to anyone about a new version. Hard to
tell how much is out of date. Pages 17-23 covering ‘Things to do, try
and join’ and ‘Places to go’ are not going to be useful due to the
suspension of many groups since Covid-19. Not useful to circulate in
it’s current format.
c) Leighton Linslade Helping Hands webpage
Leighton Linslade Helping Hands (Good Neighbours Scheme) are keen
for our help to set up a simple website. Discussions with BRCC took
place. Nothing exists (from BRCC) that can be used, so LLTC will
pursue this to support their obtaining a simple website pending C&E
Committee endorsement.
d) Digital inclusion
Directory
Discussions have taken place about a temporary webpage on LLTCs
website listing activities/services. This could be a stop-gap directory

Page 5

while we investigate an online interactive directory of services.
Technology helpline
Discussions held with Community Action Bedfordshire and BRCC
about whether they would be able to coordinate a helpline. They do not
currently have the capacity, so are discussing the cost implications for
a p/t coordinator and what would be involved in running a helpline.
Community Action Bedfordshire will be presenting a proposal for
running the helpline and cost required to the officer ready for the officer
to present at this T&F Meeting.
Technology workshops
This would be in the longer term when technology support can be
offered to those housebound, plus possible workshops linked to the
library and community centre/activity groups.
Tablet Lone scheme
This would be a longer term/future project which the officer can
continue pursuing with the groups and Committee’s blessing.
e) Online Music initiative *update
At the end of the last T&F meeting, Cllr Freeman raised that Inspiring
Music were looking into a project to address loneliness through music.
The officer contacted Inspiring Music and another organisation - Music
24 (who currently run online music services including the Leighton
Buzzard Neurotones).
This is an area of interest with regards to both ‘activities for older
people’ but also in terms of digital and ‘Covid-19’ inclusion as it would
be something that could be run while other groups are still suspended.
It does not however currently fit with our immediate, short term
identified priorities. As a consequence it is recommended that it either
be passed back to the ‘general grant scheme’ with the request for the
approved funds to be reallocated to fund the alternative project, or this
project could be put on hold until T&F group propose a future Older
Peoples grant scheme.
5.

Areas of immediate focus and the draft Committee Report
A draft report has been created to take to C&E Committee on 7
December. The recommendations include project activities that need
funding and can be activated in the short term. It is however important
to note that other medium to longer term activities for older people can
be pursued for approval at the Cultural & Economic Committee in early
2021.

6.
6.1

Activities to keep on the agenda for future consideration
Relevant groups for older men - There is still a needs gap for groups
tailored specifically to older men to help reduce loneliness.

Page
2 6

6.2

Befriending Services there is current capacity, but if we
successfully promote this service, organisations may start to struggle
and need support with elements such as volunteer recruitment.

6.3

Increase in activities/clubs – all organisations spoken to by the
officer said that while they do not have the capacity to run more clubs
themselves, there is great need for more clubs/activities for their
beneficiaries to be referred to/to attend.

6.4

Grant funding - This is still an option. For example, to support online
(or offline) music groups.

7.

Next steps

7.1

Amend and agree the report to be taken to C&E Committee.

7.2

Agree in what ‘form’ we would like to suggest to C&E Committee the
medium/long term work be carried on – should T&F Group be
continued (monthly) or would C&E wish progress to reported directly?

Area of focus

Digital
Inclusion

Directory/
Information
hub of
activities &
services

Short term

Project Activation
(time frame)
Medium term

Long term

Technology helpline

Technology workshops face
to face – in community
centres/libraries and via
befriending services

Leighton Linslade
Helping Hands
website

Tablet loan scheme through the library

Town Council
webpage listing
known activities &
services

An interactive ‘searchable’ online directory that
organisations and individuals can have password
access to for updating their activities/services
directly.

END.

Page
3 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Befriending/support services - Leighton Linslade
There are several options for ‘befriending services’ / ‘support services’ within Leighton Linslade, some existed pre-Covid, some have
come about due to Covid. These include different forms of ‘telephone befriending/telephone welfare chats.
Telephone befriending/ telephone welfare calls have increased due to many face to face groups being suspended. Most charities and
community groups have moved their support both online and over the phone. Once beneficiaries have made contact with a group and
requested telephone support, they are more likely to stay on a groups radar, with regards to being supported post Covid-19.
It’s important to note that each individual is just that, ‘individual’ - in their age, physical ability, mental wellbeing, mobility, health, home
circumstance etc. Some may self-identify as ‘lonely’ some may not. A one size fits all approach when it comes to supporting people does
not work, hence the importance of us continuing to support the many different organisations who offer such individuals support that
befits their need.

Page 9

Older people, housebound, living alone and experiencing loneliness (as outlined by Cllr Owen)
(NB some individuals may fit the first 3 categories but not be lonely)
These individuals could have suffered a stroke, or have dementia, have sight or hearing issues, suffer depression or other ailments – of
which some may suffer one, many, or indeed none.
Most of the organisations specializing in each of the above characteristics (e.g. Alzheimers Society for those with Dementia) operate
either befriending or welfare check phone lines currently. If someone who is known to these organisations approaches them, or they
receive a referral, they will ‘assess’ the client and can provide telephone calls. Many of these organisations also work together, referring
clients to one another.
Other smaller community groups who normally run face to face groups/activities (such as the Friday Club, U3A, church coffee morning
groups, neurotones etc.) are also running informal telephone contact calls between their members.

Table of those currently operating some form of welfare check and/or befriending services
Leighton Linslade
Organisation/
Community
group name

Purpose of
operation?

Leighton
Linslade
Helping Hands

Befriending
(Good
Neighbours
Scheme)
Support people Temporary
during Covid19

Leighton
Linslade
Helpers

Temporary
(covid-19)
or
permanent
Permanent

Face to
face
(not
now)
Y

Online
(e.g.
emails,
zoom)
Y

Phone

Letter
Do they
writing/ need/want
newslet to expand?

Could they
use support
from LLTC

#
clients

Y

Y

Currently
meeting
demand

Y
Webpage

75
regular

N

N

Y

N

?

They receive
support
already

tbc

Page 10

AgeUK
Bedfordshire

Support older
people in their
homes

Permanent

Y

Y

Y

?

N

N

175

Carers in
Bedfordshire

Supporting
unpaid carers

Permanent

Y

Y

Y

Y

N

?

Alzheimers
Society

Supporting
those with
alzheimers

Permanent

Y

Y

Y?

?

N

Stroke
Association

Support those
who’ve
experienced a
stroke

Permanent

Y

Y

Y

Y

N

More activities
to refer clients
to.
Support
people to use
their
technology
More activities
to refer clients
to.

Notes
They have no
waiting list, so can
take on new
clients.
They took over
the listeners line
from Hockcliffe
Church and
promote the line
on their website.
Clients include
gardening and
home visits
(outside of
Covid 19)

?

*I think they do
phone calls to!

?

They’ve moved
activities online &
over the phone
since Covid-19

Organisation/
Community
group name

Purpose of
operation?

Temporary
(covid-19)
or
permanent

Face to
face
(not
now)

Online
(e.g.
emails,
zoom)

Phone

Community
Action
Bedfordshire

Run:
Jazz up your
life,
timebanking,
community
café etc.

Permanent

Y

Y

Y

N

Support
Permanent
congregation &
community

Y

Y

Y

?

They can
do

They are
happy to
recruit more
phone
befrienders if
we have
people to refer

Voluntary run Permanent
group for older
club members
to get together
Run music
Permanent
theraphy
groups e.g.
Neurotones

N

Y

Y

Y

N

N

Y

Y

Y

?

Y

They would
run further
groups with
our support

Other
community
orgs:
Church groups
e.g. Hockcliffe

Page 11
Social groups
e.g. The Friday
Club
Music 24

Letter
Do they
writing/ need/want
newslet to expand?

Could they
use support
from LLTC

#
clients

Notes

They are in
contact with
clients, but only
informally on a
small scale.

They used to run
the Covid
‘listeners’ before
handing over to
June Tobin.
Their befriending
has a spiritual
basis.
100
They contact
group fellow group
membe members to check
rs
up on them
They moved all
their groups
online during
lockdown.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Date:

7 December 2020

Purpose of the Report: Proposal for investment in activities/services to
support Older People
Contact Officer:
Corporate Objective/s
Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1.

Sarah Jewell, C&E Services Support Officer
No. 27 To consider ways to support the increase in leisure
opportunities for older people.
Yes XXXX TBC

RECOMMENDATION/S
Should members be minded, the recommendations are:

1.1

To fund XXX using budget code XXX / XXX to XXXX activities/services
(needs to be more specific)

1.2

To confirm Committee’s preferred option as set out below towards
developing its programme of work for meeting objective No. 27, To
consider ways to support the increase in leisure opportunities for older
people:
a) The continuation of a dedicated working group made up of 5
members from Cultural and Economic Services Committee, and to
bring
further
recommendations
forward
for
Committee’s
consideration when developed.
b) To directly oversee work progress receiving regular update reports
and future recommendations.

2

INFORMATION

2.1

Scoping exercise and its findings
The focus of this work is to explore what the Town Council can do to help
increase leisure opportunities for older people (as per Council objective No.

Page 13

27). It was agreed to focus on older people over 55 years, with an interest in
those experiencing loneliness.
Online and hardcopy survey (appendix 1) was carried out with over 100
responses. The key findings were as follows:
a) U3A were the most frequently mentioned group people were members of,
followed by the Friday Club then the WI.
b) Company/Socialising and Interest/Theme/Hobby were the main purposes
stated for reasons people were members of a group.
c) When asked the reason respondents need a ‘new’ group or service, both
the reasons (in b) stayed high, but ‘Physical Activity’ shot up in
prominence. (NB, this could be due to shielding/people not able to get out
during Covid-19)
d) Majority of groups that respondents were members of, are currently
suspended due to covid-19, those that were operating were doing so
online or in touch via email or telephone.
e) It was clear that respondents wanted groups during the week and
weekend and at various times of the day. Most respondents were willing to
pay a form of membership ‘sub’.
f) Gender split – on breaking down the responses by gender, it was apparent
that less men are currently part of a group (65% stated they are not part of
a group) and that men ‘state’ their reason for wanting to be part of a group
as being linked to interest/theme/hobbies and physical activities.

Meetings with charities, organisations, group leaders
Conversations were carried out with numerous organisations about their
beneficiaries/members including inviting some representatives to talk directly
at the Task & Finish Group. A meeting was held with Jane Moakes, Head of
Strategic Commissioning, Adult Social Care and Sarah Hughes, Community
Engagement Manager, Central Bedfordshire Council. The officer attended the
Healthwatch ‘Older Peoples Festival’ (online) and a Community Catalyst
hosted conference about support schemes such as the Good Neighbours
Scheme.
Overview of findings from this research:
a) There are a diverse number of groups available for different needs (e.g.
older people with different ailments, disabilities, support reasons), many
are on hold due to Covid-19, some have been transferred successfully
online.
b) Knowing what is happening in our community is hard – information
sources are very splintered – there is no one ‘information hub’.
c) Community members and organisations still think more activities/groups
are needed in Leighton Buzzard, but organisations themselves do not
have the human resource capacity to run them. Many say ‘funding’ is not
the issue.
d) Digital exclusion is a big issue. Covid-19 has shown that people being

Page 14

digitally connected is increasingly the way of the world, and supporting
older people in accessing this is important. Being intimidated/not knowing
how to use the technology is a big barrier to its use.
e) There are not as many opportunities for men – their needs/desires for a
‘group’ are specific.
f) When looking at supporting older people who are housebound and lonely,
one of the few avenues of practical support is ‘befriending services’.
2.2

Identified needs gaps

2.2.1 Digital Inclusion
There is a clear need for ‘digital inclusion’ among this age group. This should
not come at the expense of hard copy information/activities being available,
but Covid-19 has shown us that supporting older people to use technology is
fundamental to reducing their isolation and loneliness. The urgent need could
be addressed through a telephone ‘technology helpline’, with face-to-face
support and then group workshops being introduced.
2.2.2 Directory/information hub of activities and services for older people
Both individuals and organisations are struggling to find ‘one clear place’ to go
to which lists what is available - activities and service wise for older people.
The Older Peoples Directory, printed every 2 years, is good, but is not
comprehensive when it comes to activities. Plus this information needs to be
available online, so that older people, their friends, family and neighbours can
search up-to-date activities for them online.
2.2.3 Other areas of consideration:
a) Befriending services support – there is current capacity available, if
demand increases, the Town Council may wish to consider supporting
organisations/groups who offer this service. (see ‘Befriending in Leighton
Buzzard Table in appendix 2)
b) Activities specifically for older men – there is a needs gap for
groups/activities specifically catering for older men e.g. men in sheds ‘type’
offering – a preference being a activity based reason to meet.
c) Activities in general for older people – most organisations (e.g.
Alzheimers Society, Carers in Bedfordshire etc.) said they didn’t have the
capacity to create new groups/activities for older people (funding was not
their issue, but human resources is). They said they desperately wanted to
see more activities for older people in Leighton Buzzard that they could
refer their beneficiaries to.
2.3

Covid-19
It is important to bear in mind that this project has been researched and driven
forward during Covid-19 when the circumstances that older people find
themselves in is very different to that which they would ‘normally’ face – in
many cases making this part of the community ‘more lonely’ than ever. We

Page 15

have therefore created a time frame that looks at both ‘short term’ activities
during Covid-19 and longer-term heading into post-Covid-19 project
activation.
2.4

Project proposals

2.4.1 The identified priorities are outlined in the below table:

Area of focus
Digital
Inclusion

Directory/
Information
hub of
activities &
services

Project Activation
(time frame)
Short term
Medium term
Technology helpline

Leighton Linslade
Helping Hands
website
Town Council
webpage listing
known activities &
services

Long term

Technology workshops face
to face – in community
centres/libraries and via
befriending services
Tablet loan scheme through the library

An interactive ‘searchable’ online directory
that organisations and individuals can have
password access to for updating their
activities/services directly.

2.4.2 Estimated project costs are identified in the table below:
Area of focus

Digital inclusion

Directory/
information hub

Project
Leighton Linslade
Helping Hands
Website
Technology
helpline
Town Council
webpage
Interactive online
directory

Specific activity
Design of website
Domain name and
website hosting costs
p/t coordinator of helpline
(CAB hosting)
Design of webpage on
LLTC website
Compile all information to
go on directory
External organisation to
design directory
Web hosting costs
TOTAL

2.5

On-going support for older people

Page 16

Annual cost
(2 year period)
2021
2022
£tbc
£0
£tbc
£tbc
£tbc

£tbc

Staff time

£0

Staff time
£tbc

Staff
time
£tbc

£tbc

£tbc

£

£

The initial scope of this project activity is looking at the short to medium term
support of older people through an officially coordinated technical helpline and
by creating a directory. In the medium to longer term, the Task & Finish Group
propose the Committee look at opportunities for additional project support
including:
a) Digital inclusion – the scoping of a ‘Tablet Loan Scheme’ that could
potentially be run from Leighton Buzzard Library.
b) A grant scheme to support an increase in activity groups. This could
include a specific focus on older men, an area identified as a gap in current
provision, or a separate project activity stream could be set up looking at
activities for men.
c) Befriending services – an on-going activity stream to assess and thereby
support organisations if and when, there is an increase in demand.
3.

CONCLUSIONS

3.1

Research was made harder due to the suspension of community activities as
a result of Covid-19. This proved to be a key lesson in forming proposals for
Committee’s consideration. Three timescales have been identified:
a) During Covid – short to medium term,
b) Coming out of Covid - medium to long term,
c) Post Covid – long-term.

3.2

A high importance is given to the theme of ‘connectivity’ and the issue of
‘digital exclusion’ when gaining feedback from community infrastructure and
service organisations. Social interaction was a common thread for survey
respondents for engaging with a local group/activity.

3.3

Committee is initially asked to consider recommendations for the short to
medium term to keep older people connected with their families, communities,
and service providers. As people and services rely more on technology
platforms, the gap in technical skills and access to communications
equipment has been highlighted.

3.4

Research also identified other themes as listed under section 2.2, above
which could be further developed over the medium to longer-term.

3.5

The work of the Task & Finish Group in overseeing the exploration of issues
and development of recommendations has concluded. As per para. 3.1
above, there is much potential for future development of work. Committee is
asked how it wishes to proceed its focus on furthering its objective in
supporting leisure opportunities for older people.

End

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18

